
)
f

,
"

United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
TWENTIETH SESSION

Of/ieial Records

CONTENTS
Page

Agenda item 87:
Reports of the International Law Commission

on the work of its sixteenth and seventeenth
sessions (continued) • • • • • • • • • . . • • • • • 7

Chairman: Mr. Abdullah EL-ERIAN
(U nited Arab Republ ic).

AGENDA ITEM 87

Reports of the International Law Commission on the
work of its sixteenth and seventeenth sessions
(A/5809, A/6009; A/C.6/L.557, L.558) (continued)

1. Mr. ROSENNE (Israel) said that his Government
had already submitted written observations on each
of the sections of the law of treaties prepared by the
International Law Commission in 1962, 1963 and 1964
and he welcomed the completion by the Commission
of the first draft of its codification of the law of
treaties; he hoped that it would succeed in presenting
the final draft to the Sixth Committee in 1966. The
delegations of Israel to both the Fifth and Sixth Com
mittees would suppJrt the programme of work in
chapter IV of the Commission's report on its seven
teenth session (A/6009), particularly the proposed
extraordinary winter session in January 1966 and
the extension of the regular session in summer 1966;
he hoped the programme would receive the necessary
endorsement from the competent organs of the General
Assembly.

2. The delegation of Israel approved the Commis
sion's confirmation at its seventeenth session (A/6009,
para. 16) of its earlier decision to present the draft
articles of the law of treaties in a form which could
serve as a basis for a convention and also its decision
to present the whole codification of the law of treaties
in a single draft text (ibid., para. 18).

3. If the Commission succeeded in this, the Sixth
Committee would be faced at its twenty-first session
with the last stages of the work and he considered,
therefore, that the time had come for the Committee
to turn its attention to the questions likely to be raised
at a diplomatic conference of plenipotentiaries con
vened to draft the final text. Although it appeared
to be the tendency of the General Assembly to refer
codification drafts to a conference of plenipoten
tiaries, he did not in any way wish to anticipate any
recommendations which might be made by the Inter
national Law Commission. Lest the Sixth Committee's
debate at the twenty-first session of the General
Assembly become too abstract, however, he suggested

7

.• '"". :to

SIXTH COMMITTEE, 840th
MEETING

Friday, 1 October 1965,
at 11 a.m.

NEW YORK

that the Secretariat be asked to prepare for sub
mission to that session a paper on the concrete ques
tions likely to arise at a conference on the codification
of the law of treaties, which was a vast and, in some
respects, even unmanageable subject. Experience of
codification seemed to show that each topic required
its particular method of codificatio! 1> and that it would
be unwise to generalize too much when speaking of
a conference of plenipotentiaries. On examining the
records of the codification conferences held in 1958,1.1
1961Y and 1963,Y he had been struck by the dif
ferences between each conference and the progressive
evolution of their procedures, and in particular by
the reference of the President of the Conference on
Consular Relations in 1963 to "the problem caused
by rules of procedure that were sometimes ill-adapted
to the discussion".
4. He would like the Secretariat to begin examining
such questions as the estimated len.gth of a conference
for the codification of the law of treaties, the method
of work of such a conference, the advisability of
dividing such a conference into committees as had
been done in the United Nations Conferences on the
Law of the Sea and the United Nations Conference
on Consular Relations, the desirability or otherwise
of further adapting the rules of procedure for codi
fication conferences as they had evolved up to the
1963 United Nations Conference on Consular Relations,
and the like. He had in mind a thorough study of the
h1atter so that if the Secretariat were asked to submit
a paper for the twenty-first session it would be in
a position to do so without delay. It might even be
desirable for the Secretariat to discuss the subject
informally with the International Law Commission.
In addition, the Semetariat should prepare the same
type of reference guide to the draft articles in their
final form which it had provided for all the previous
codification projects.
5. He was pleased to note that the Commission had
completed the first draft of the articles on special
missions (A/6009, chap. Ill, B), and although his
Government's comments on that draft were inprepara
tion he wished to make two general comments.
6. Firstly, the delegation of Israel generally approved
the Commission's decision to keep as close as pos
sible to the language which already appeared in the
1961 Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations.Y

11 United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea, Geneva, 24 Feb
ruary-27 April 1958.

Y United Nations Conference on Diplomatic Intercourse and Im
munities. Vienna, 2 March-14 April 1961.

11 United Nations Conference on Consular Relations, Vienna,
4 March-22 Ap::H 1963.

11 See United Nations Conference on Diplomatic Intercourse and
Immunities. Official Records, vol. 11. Annexes (United Nations publi
cation. Sales No.: 62.X.l).

A/C.6/SR.840



;a-e.

8 General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Sixth Committee

or, where more appropriate, the language of the 1963
Vienna Convention on Consular Relations. §j He greatly
appreciated the personal sacrifice of the Special
Rapporteur, Mr. MilanBarto~, in agreeing to such
a decision although his initial views on the matter
had been somewhat different.

7. The second comment concerned the ultimate form
of the draft articles. That question required very
close attention on the part of the Commission, for
while he agreed with the Commission's general de
cision to prepare those draft articles in a form which
could serve as a basis for a convention, he was far
from convinced that it would be feasible to complete
the codification of the law in question in a conference
of plenipotentiaries. He thought that the Commission
should examine very closely any other possibilities
which suggested themselves and he also hoped that
at its second reading the Commission would succeed
in condensing the material into fewer articles than
at present, for although the Commission had been
right, for the purposes of the first reading, to examine
every side of the question ind.Jpendently and produce
a separate draft article for each, that did not mean
that at the second reading it could not reduce the
number of such articles by using more direct cross
references to the earlier convention of 1961. Finally,
the delegation of Israel did not consider that the
topic of special missions need embrace what were
referred to in paragraph 48 of the report on the
Commission's seventeenth session (A/6009) as "high
level" special missions, although it appreciated Mr.
Barto~'s pione.f\ring work.

8. With regard to chapter V of the Commission's
report, the delegation of Israel noted with particular
interest the references (A/5809, paras. 43 and 49;
A/6009, paras. 57 and 64) to co-operation with other
bodies and the exchange and distribution of documents
of the Commission, and it hoped that the competent
organs of the General Assembly would approve the
recommendations in those paragraphs.

9. The delegation of Israel wished to draw attention
once more to the delays in the production of the two
volumes of the Yearbook of the International Law
Commission. It was true that there had been less
delay in publishing volume I in the current year, but
there was still room for improvement; it was also
essential that volume II should be published as rapidly
as possible, for it was just as important as volume I
since it contained the basic material for the dis
cussions and decisions of the Commissionwithoutwhich
they could not be understood; moreover, volume II
should be circulated in the same way as volume 1.
The delegation of Israel noted paragraph 69 of the
report on the seventeenth session with interest, and
although it considered that there was always room
for improvement it wished to pay a tribute to the
very high standards attained by the editorial staff
of the Yearbook.

10. In conclusion, section F of chapter V, on the
Seminar on International Law, was in some respects
the most interesting part of the report on the seven
teenth session. The delegation of Israel note with

§j See United Nations Conference on Consular Relations, Official
Record~, voL Il, Annexes (United Nations publication, Sales No.:
M.X.l).

satisfaction the Commission's observations in para
graph 71 regarding the organization and administration
of the Seminar and the qualifications of the partici
pants, and it was therefore prepared to support the
suggestion made in paragraph 72 that the General
Assembly might consider granting fellowships to
cover the travel and subsistence expenses of nationals
of developing countries who wished to attend such
seminars and were qualified to do so. It hoped that
the Sixth Committee would approve that recommenda
tion and transmit it to the appropriate Committee of
the General Assembly or other organ of the General
Assembly. The Government of Israel wished to an
nounce that it was prepared to defray the travel and
subsistence expenses of one national of a developing
country-to be selected by the Secretariat in ac
cordance with whatever criteria it had for choosing
such candidates-who wished to attend the Seminar
but could not do so for financial reasons. That offer
applied to the year 1966, assuming that a Seminar
would be organized then, and the Governmer. f
Israel's future position would be determined by the
development of the Seminars. Although that offer was
completely unconditional, it was to be hoped that other
delegations would find it possible to make similar
offers.

11. Mr. AMADO (Brazil) recalled that, as a member
of the Commission, he had opposed the view that
the Commission should draw up codes, that is, scien
tific documents serving as models for States in their
relations with other States, which wodd be, not
peremptory, but entirely generic in character. He
had contended that States made the law, and that the
Commission's role was to work for States. The task
of the members of the Commission, as intellectual
agents and interpreters, was to define, draft, and
codify; it was the representatives of States who laid
down the law. The Commission had adopted that
position, and accordingly had abandoned the idea of
preparing codes-an idea so attractive to professors
seeking ideal progress in the best of all possible
worlds.

12. With respect to the law of treaties, the Com
mission had boldly prepa.red a text for adoption by
States. It had thus shown its confidence in the present
day international community and its belief that States
could agree to rules drawn up in a realistic spirit.
The Commission had decided to give its draft articles
the form of a single convention, in which States could
agree on the rules that would govern the law of
treaties from the first act of furnishing credentials
in a negotiation to the last stage of interpretation
of the text. That might well be a dream, but it was
a dream that offered many practical possibilities.

13. In the past year, the Commission had made
substantial advances in its work on the law of treaties.
Difficulties had diminished, and a meeting of minds
had been reached on several points. One question
-the extent of the contractual element in treaties
had to son~e extent resisted the desire for unanimity
and agreement. One view, favouring universality and
multilateral conventions. contended that all States had
the right to enter into :.11 treaties. 'l'he other, based
on the principle of the will of States, asked how States
could be compelled against their will to enter into

(,
~

.y

(

}
"

,' ....

'",
i

contracb
again to
positions

14. The
difficult!
face in d
missions
surmoun
principle
mentary
daily act
legal lit
hope tha
by an i1
Conventi
Vienna
missiom
the time
mission'
should Cl

Litho in U.



9

'I
j

~~

77601-December 1965-2.000

15. The Commission had already rejected the idea
that a distinction must be made between missions of
a political nature and technical missions. Political
missions could have important technical aspects,
just as technical missions could have a significant
political character. On the other hand, special missions
led by Heads of State, Heads of Government or Minis
ters for Foreign Affairs could not be treated on the
same level as special missions of mere representa
tives. There might be a special chapter to give high
level special missions separate treatment.
16. 'I.ne Seminar on International Law, organized by
the European Office of the United Nations, had been
a valuable innovation. His delegation was prepared
to support any measure intended to promote and
develop that project.
17. In a world threatened by the forces of destruc
tion, the Committee's thoughts must be turnedtowards
peaceful means of increasing the solidarity of mankind
and strengthening the world community.

The meeting rose at 11.45 a.m.

840th meeting - 1 October 1965

contracts with other States. The members would try
again to see if it was possible to reconcile the two
positions.

Litho in U.N.

14. The Israel representative had mentioned the
difficulties that an international conference might
face in drawing up permanent rules concerning special
missions. Those difficulties, however, were not in
surmountable. There was already a body of general
principles that could be extracted from the rudi
mentary practice-the practical rules applied in the
daily activity of ministries-and there was substantial
legal literature. Accordingly, there was ground for
hope that a text on special missions might be 2~dded
by an international conference to the 1961 Vienna
Convention on Diplomatic Relations and the 1963
Vienna Convention on Consular Relations. Special
missions were an expression of the dynamism of
the times and a response to u!'gent needs. Tht. Com
mission's text should contain the living rules; it
should come as close as possible to reality.

tkiZa,L! ..,..... ;gal!. i. 11 [£; L L :diiD!fIW,r~ ;44 ,2 El




